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PORTSMOUTH WATER/SEWER DIVISION 

ADDEMDUM NUMBER 2: 

RFP No. #25-17 

FINANCE BILLING SYSTEM  

Issued: December 12, 2016 

 

This Addendum forms part of the original document marked RFP#25-17 Finance Billing 

System. 

 

1) The following questions were asked and answered: 

 

Q: Has the City of Portsmouth already determined it will replace the current 4.3 version of the 

Pentamation Utility Billing System rather than upgrade it with the incumbent Vendor’s 

newer version? 

 

A: The incumbent vendor is invited to bid on the RFP.  The City will pick the Utility Billing 

System/Vendor that best fits our current and future needs.   

 

Q: How many People will need concurrent access to the software?  How many people in total  

 will need access to the software? 

 

A: An estimated 10 people will need concurrent access to the software and an estimated 20  

 people in total will need to have access rights to the system.  

 

Q: How many years of history would the City of Portsmouth like to have converted into the 

new system? 

 

A: From the year 2000 forward, all of the history for open accounts. 

 

Q: Does the City currently have a license of SQL Server?  If so, what version and what license 

model (CAL or Core)? 

 

A: No 

 

Q: Does the City currently have a license of Crystal Reports? 

 

A: No 

 

Q: Our system has other features and add-ons that may be useful to the City of Portsmouth 

but are not outlined in the RFP.  Can any or all of these additional features be included in 

our proposal for consideration? 
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A: Yes, as long as all of the RFP noted requirements are met, please include anything that 

your company believes may be beneficial to the City of Portsmouth 

 

Q: Does the City of Portsmouth currently print (bills) internally or are they sent out to a 3rd 

party?  Does the City print postcard or statement sized bills? 

 

A: Invoices are currently all printed internally.  No 3rd party is used.  The City prints statement 

size bills (8 ½ x11 in size).  A sample of a Utility bill has been attached to this addendum.  

 

Q: Miscellaneous Bills – how are they derived?  Are they stored as flat fees with units 

associated based on the job service?  Will miscellaneous bills be sent out to residents who 

do not have an active water/sewer account?  Can you provide a complete list of 

miscellaneous billing functions and are these invoiced to individuals or to properties? 

 

A: Miscellaneous bills are issued by the City for any items not covered by the water/sewer 

utility bills.  Some are flat fees that have been voted in by the City Council.  There are other 

miscellaneous bills that are based on City Agreements/Contracts and the amounts vary 

from year to year.  Some examples of our miscellaneous bills are for police details; loan 

repayments; job services; signs; etc.  Miscellaneous bills are sent out to both individuals 

and to properties and they can be issued to people who do not have water/sewer accounts 

with the city (such as a contractor or company).  A complete list of miscellaneous billing 

functions will be provided to those vendors selected to present their products.  A sample 

miscellaneous bill has been attached to this addendum. 

 

Q: Should the following two interfaces be added to the requirements list in section A of the 

RFP #25-17? 

 Interface to Cash Management System (Stone Hill Municipal Solution Software 

version 1.1) 

 Interface to Web Based Online Payment Solution (Invoice Cloud) 

 

A: The City prefers that a vendor have the capability to interface with these two items however 

it is open to reviewing other options presented in the bid presentations that are received. 

 

Q: Cash Management System – Is this referring to Lock Box payments?  If so what banks or 

collection points does the City of Portsmouth use?  Is it expected that utility invoices be 

made available to pay within the City of Portsmouth online cash receipts system?  Is the 

integration of the Cash Management System to be real-time or file based.   

 

A: The Cash Management System is not referring to a lock box.  Bills are currently available 

both in batch and real-time in the Cash Management System.  All payments are processed 

through the Cash Management System as there is an established vendor for credit cards.  

The payment information is then sent back to Pentamation on a daily basis. 

 

Q: What payment types are accepted by the City? 
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A: The City accepts over the counter payments (cash, money order, checks and credit cards); 

Web payments through Invoice Cloud (credit cards, ACH, as well as one-time payments); 

and payment remittances that go through a lockbox facility. 

 

Q: Our system also comes with turnkey merchant services and an online payment portal by 

default.  You can choose not to install it and can continue with Invoice Cloud but is the 

City willing to consider an online payment portal for Water/Sewer customers? 

  

A: Yes, the City will review all options presented. 

 

Q: Is your Zenner Meter System read via AMR (touch, drive by, etc.) or via AMI technology 

(Cell Tower, Network Controller, etc.)?  Are you currently using any leak detection 

technology with the Zenner Meter System? 

 

A: The Zenner Meter System is read via AMI (a Mesh Network).  Zenner is formerly known 

as Datamatic.  Yes, the City is currently using a leak detection system through Zenner. 

 

Q: Does the City of Portsmouth currently use an automated service work order system of any 

type?  Our system comes with a Mobile Service Order Solution, would the City be 

interested in this as part of the proposal?  If the answer is yes, how many field crews would 

need the solution? 

 

A: The City currently uses a staff managed work order system called VueWorks.  It is not 

automated or interfaced with the billing system.  Yes, the City would be interested in a 

Mobile Service Order Solution for 5 field crews. 

 

Q: Does the City of Portsmouth currently use an automated appointment scheduler for the 

technicians of any type? 

 

A: The City currently uses a staff managed appointment scheduler through VueWorks.  It is 

not automated or interfaced with the billing system. 

 

Q: Does the City of Portsmouth currently use an inventory system for jobbing or for tracking? 

 

A: The City currently uses a staff managed inventory system.  It is not automated or interfaced 

with the billing system. 

 

Q: Does the City of Portsmouth currently track and schedule backflow devices and testing? 

 

A: Yes, it is done through the Public Works Department using an access database. 

 

Q: Is there currently a way for a customer to see history of their usage in an online 

environment?  Would you like for your customers to have to mobile access to a Customer 

Web Portal? 
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A: The City of Portsmouth does not have the functionality for customers to review their 

account history with its current systems.  Yes, we would be interested in having the ability 

for our customers to have access online to their accounts as well as on their mobile devices. 

 

Q: Is there a way for a customer to log a service call in an online environment? 

 

A: The City of Portsmouth does not have that functionality with its current systems. 

 

Q: Is there an estimated budget for the RFP #25-17 Finance Billing System? 

 

A: The City will negotiate fees with the selected vendors and if terms cannot be  

 agreed upon at that time then the City will move on to the next vendor on the selection list. 

 

 

2) Included as part of this Addendum is a copy of both a Utility Invoice (front and back) and 

a Miscellaneous Invoice. 

 

All else remains unchanged. 

 

Please acknowledge this Addendum with your proposal.  Failure to do so may subject a 

bidder to disqualification. 

 

 

 








